
Tehama County Sheriff's Office 
Inmate Telecommunication System RFP 

Addendum #1 
May 1st, 2025 

1. Please provide the average daily population for the last three months, broken down by
month, if possible.
January – 96
February – 98
March - 93

2. Please provide a copy of each agreement/contract and all amendments (if applicable) the
County has executed with its incumbent inmate Telephone System (ITS), Video
Visitation System (VVS) and Tablet provider(s).
Please see Exhibit A.

3. How many inmate multi-function/video visitation kiosks are currently installed?
15

4. How many public user video visitation kiosks are currently installed?
0

5. Please provide a breakdown by housing unit of the inmate capacity in each. The inmate
capacity for each cell block is necessary for determining network requirements.
Please see Exhibit B.

6. How is commissary ordered today?
Kiosks located in the housing unit or housing unit day room.

7. Are calling cards being used today? If so, how are they purchased and given to the
inmate? What denominations are available?
No

8. Who is the County's current inmate banking/trust fund services provider?
Keefe

9. Is the inmate banking/trust account managed through the commissary system or the Jail
Management System (JMS) or other system? If other, please specify.
Commissary System



10. Please provide the current service and commission rates associated with each of the 
following inmate services: a). ITS, b). VVS, c). Electronic Messaging (aka Email) and d). 
Entertainment/Media. NOTE: If any inmate service is not currently utilized by the County 
or is not relevant to the RFP, please mark the appropriate service item response as "not 
applicable."
Please see Exhibit A.

11. To allow a vendor to present their best possible offer, it is very important to have 
historical information regarding revenue data for current inmate services. Will the County 
please provide copies of Service Usage/Revenue/Commission reports for the past three 
months for the following County services: a). ITS, b). VVS, c). Electronic Messaging
(aka Email) and d). Entertainment/Media? NOTE: If any inmate service is not currently 
utilized by the County or is not relevant to the RFP, please mark the appropriate service 
item response as "not applicable."
Please see Exhibit C.

12. What limits does the County place, if any, on use of the services in this RFP such as 
maximum number of ITS calls, onsite visits allowed per week (or other interval), remote 
visits per week, calls per week, minutes per call/visit, etc?
No maximum number of calls, 2-30 minute onsite visits per week, 2-30 minute remote 
visits per week, unlimited calls per week as long as funds are available.

13. Do you currently have an inmate tablets program? If so: Yes
a.) Who is the current tablet manufacturer/provider? IC Solutions
b.) How many tablets does the County have today? Approximately 130
c.) Do inmates share the tablets? Yes
d.) How do they check them out? Inmates take tablets from charging stations as 
Correctional Deputy Time Allows
e.) What services are currently available on the tablets (i.e., education, electronic 
messaging, entertainment, video visitation, etc.) Education, messaging and 
entertainment.
f.) How many tablet charging stations are currently installed? 15

14. "Item #2 located on page #14 in the “Payment, Charges & Billing” section of the RFP 
states, “2. Vendor shall pay County a commission rate for the ITS applied on gross 
revenue.” Item #10 located in the same section of the RFP states, “10. Vendor shall pay 
commission on the total gross revenues before any deductions are made for unbillable 
calls, bad debt, uncollectible calls, fraudulent calls, LEC adjustments, or any other 
Vendor expense. Commission for debit calls shall be based upon the total gross revenues 
generated from debit call usage and is payable to the County. Commission for pre-paid 
cards shall be based on the face value of the pre-paid cards. Any calls from the free call 
list supplied by the County shall not generate revenues for the Vendor and shall not be 
commissionable to the County.” These requirements imply that the vendor is required to 
provide commissions on fees/revenue earnings from all inmate communication services 
provided, including telephone and video visitation system services. However, the recently 
passed Federal Communications Commission (FCC) Order 24-75, prohibits Incarcerated



Peoples’ Communication Service (IPCS) providers from entering into contracts allowing 
or requiring for the payment of site commissions for inmate telephone and video 
visitation services. Will the County please consider removing or revising this requirement 
to allow vendors to submit a proposal that abides by current IPCS rules and regulations?" 

15. After the first round of questions is answered, will the County accept additional questions
if clarification is needed for any of the County’s responses?
No, a second addendum will not be issued.

16. Would Tehama County please provide the current rates for all revenue generating
services currently installed (i.e. phone calling, video visits, e-messaging, streaming
services, entertainment, etc.)?
Please see Exhibit A.

17. We would like to respectfully inquire if Tehama County would consider granting a two-
week extension to the RFP submission deadline, if possible?   This would allow vendors
additional time to assess the released answers to questions and put together their best
possible response.
No, our current contract terms end May 7th and a new contract needs to be secured.

This requirement has been removed.



Standard! Form of Agreement 

AGREErvJIENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF TEHAMA SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 

AND 

IC SOLUTIONS 

This agreement is entered into between the County of Tehama Sheriff's Department ("County") 

and IC Solutions ("Contractor") for the purpose of providing an Inmate Telecommunication 

System at the Tehama County Jail. 

1. RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONTRACTOR

During the term of this agreement, Contractor shall provide an Inmate Telecommunication 

system and Tablets as specified in the "County of Tehama Request for Proposal, Inmate 

Telecommunication System,'' attached hereto as Exhibit B, and the Proposal submitted by 

Contractor, dated December 11, 2018, attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

Services shalJ include, but not limited to. the inmate telephone system, inmate telephone system 

services, instruments, integration into the jail management system, key numbers, payment 

platfonn, restricted numbers, streaming services, tablets, telecommunication devices for the deaf, 

telephones, unbillable numbers, and unmonitored numbers. 

2. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COUNTY

County shall compensate Contractor for said services pursuant to Section 3 and 4 of this 

agreement. 

3. COMPENSATION

Contractor shall not be entitled to any compensation or reimbursement whatsoever from County 

under this agreement. Contractor's sole consideration for the services performed under this 

Agreement shall be Contractor's Pmtion of the proceeds of the sales of the jail inmate 

telecommunication services as set forth in the Proposal, attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

Contractor shall pay County a commission equal to the amount set forth in the Exhibit C attached 

hereto. Such commission shall be deposited into the County's Inmate Welfare Fund. 

Miscellaneous Agreement #2019-123 
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ADULT DETENTION FACILITY 
LIVING AREA SPACE EVALUATION 

Board of State and Community Corrections 

BSCC Code: 5800 

FACILITY: Tehama County Jail I TYPE: II RC: 191 

FIELD REPRESENTATIVE: Steven Wicklander DA TE: 4/19/2023 

ROOMS EACH ROOM 

Applicable 
# EACH CELL 

Total DIMENSIONS FIXTURES* 
Location Cell Type Cell 

Standards # Beds RC RC (L x W x H) T u w F s 

Booking/Receiving 
H101 Holding 1991 1 2 (2) 6.7' X 7.5' X 8' 1 1 1 

H102 Holding 1991 1 6 (6) 8'x10'x8' 1 1 1 

H104 Holding 1991 1 6 (6) 10'x10'x8' 1 1 1 

H105 Sobering 1991 1 6 (6) 10' x 1 0' x 1 0' 1 1 1 

H103 Safety 1991 1 1 (1) 10' X 5.4' X 10.0' 1 

Note: A metal holding cell is used in the booking/receiving area and it is a non-rated space. 

Housing 
White Multiple 1973 1 6 4 4 9' X 11.5' X 10' 1 1 1 Unit 

Note: Female inmates. 

Single 1973 2 1 1 2 9' X 6' X 10' 1 1 1 

Multiple 1973 1 8 6 6 17' X 14.8' X 10' 1 1 1 

Dayroom 1973 1 24' X 12.5'X 10' 2 2 2 

Green 
Single 1973 7 1 1 7 6.5' X 8.0' X 10' 1 1 1 Unit 

Dayroom 1973 1 18' X 16' X 10' 1 1 1 

Note: Female inmates. 

Ad 
Single 1973 3 1 1 3 8.8' X 6.8' X 10' 1 1 1 

Seg/lso 

SHU Single 1991 2 1 1 2 12' X 8' X 8' 1 1 1 

Dayroom 1991 1 

Orange 
Multiple 1973 1 8 6 6 14.8' x 12.8'x 10' 1 1 1 Unit 
Single 1973 8 1 1 8 8.8'x 6' X 10' 1 1 1 

Dayroom 1973 1 21.8' X 16' X 10' 2 2 2 

Note: Sentenced inmates. 

Blue 
Multiple 1973 1 8 6 6 

14.5' X 12.5' X 
1 1 1 Unit 10' 

Multiple 1973 2 4 4 8 8.8' X 11.8' X 10' 1 1 1 

Note: Unsentenced inmates. 

Yellow 
Multiple 1973 4 12 8 32 25.5' X 16' X 10' 2 2 2 Unit 

Note: Dimensions include dayroom space (dorm and dayroom combined). Inmate workers or work furlough. 

Housing 
Dormitory 1994 1 48 42 42 8 8 1 5-103

Note: Inmate workers and low-level offenders are housed in this area. Triple bunks are used. 

s 

1 

1 

1 

1 

2 

2 

4 

1 
} I ··....-l-----------------------------

*T = Toilets; U = Urinals; W = Wash Basins; F = Fountains; S = Showers in unit. If "Total RC" appears in brackets (),it is not part of
the facility's rated capacity. "+" indicates that capacityrncludes prorated air space from adjacent areas.
5800 Tehama County Jail Jl LASE 23-24 - l - A360 LAS Adult-OS.dot (8/05) 
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